
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

EASTERN



advertisements in violation of Sections 5 and 12 of the FIC Act, 15 U.S.c. §§ 45 and 52,

and for violations of CAN-SPAM, 15 U.S.c. § 7701 et seq.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 15 U.S.c. §§ 45(a), 52, 53(b),

57b, 7706(a) and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a) and 1345.

3. Venue in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois is proper

under 15 U.S.c. § 53(b) and 28 U.S.c. §§ 1391 (b), (c) and (d).

PLAINTIFF

4. Plaintiff FIC is an independent agency of the United States Government created by

statute. 15 U.S.c. §§ 41-58. The Commission enforces Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FIC

Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a) and 52, which prohibit, respectively, deceptive or unfair acts or

practices and false advertisements for food, drugs, devices, services, or cosmetics, in or

affecting commerce. The FIC is also charged with enforcing CAN-SPAM as if statutory

violations of CAN-SPAM "were an unfair or deceptive act or practice proscribed under

Section 18(a)(1)(B) of the [FIC Act] (15 U.S.C. 57a(a)(1)(B»." 15 U.S.c. § 7706(a).

5. Sections 13(b), 16, and 19 of the FIC Act authorize the FIC to initiate federal district

court proceedings, in its own name by its designated attorneys, to enjoin violations of any

provision of law enforced by the FIC, and to secure such equitable relief as may be



7. Defendant Lance Thomas Atkinson CAtkinson") is an officer or director of lnet

Ventures. Atkinson is a New Zealand citizen and a resident of



C01\1l\1ERCE

15. At all times material to this Complaint, Defendants have maintained a substantial course

of trade in or affecting commerce, as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act,

15 U.S.C. § 44.

DEFINITIONS

16. "Electronic mail message" (or "email") means a message sent to a unique electronic

mail address. 15 U.S.c. § 7702(6).

17. "Electronic mail address" means a destination, commonly expressed as a string of

characters, consisting of a unique user name or mailbox (commonly referred to as the

"local part") and a reference to an Internet domain (commonly referred to as the "domain

part"), whether or not displayed, to which an electronic mail message can be sent or

delivered. 15 U.S.c. § 7702(5).

18. "Commercial electronic mail message" means any electronic mail message the primary

purpose of which is the commercial advertisement or promotion of a commercial product

or service (including the content on an Internet website operated for commercial

purposes). 15 U.S.c. § 7702(2).

19. "Header information" means the source, destination, and routing information attached

to an electronic mail message, including the originating domain name and originating

electronic mail address, and any other information that appears in the line identifying, or

purporting



21. "Procure," when used with respect to the initiation of a commercial email message,

means intentionally to payor provide other consideration to, or induce, another person to

initiate such a message on one's behalf. 15 U.S.c. § 7702(12).

22. "Protected Computer" means a computer which is used in interstate or foreign

commerce or communication, including a computer located outside the United States that

is used in a manner that affects interstate or foreign commerce or communication of the

United States. 15 U.S.c. § 7702(13).

23. "Sender" means a person who initiates a commercial email message and whose

product, service, or Internet Web site is adv1Sftisd



26. Defendants Inet Ventures and Atkinson have marketed and sold the Hoodia and male

enhancement pills on at least hundreds of Intemet Web sites often titled "Herbal Kings,"

"Elite Herbals" or "Express Herbals."

27. To induce consumers to purchase the Hoodia gordonii pills, Defendants Inet Ventures

and Atkinson have made the following statements on their Web sites:

HoodiaGordonii WEIGHTLOSS BREAKTHROUGH

FAST EFFECTIVE \VEIGHT LOSS
Hoodia Gordonii Plus Reduces Your Appetite in Minutes

Hoodia Gordonii is the Fastest, Most Effective Weight Loss Supplement Available

* * *

The discovery of the active ingredient in the Hoodia gordonii plant is proven with
clinical research to suppress one's appetite by up to 2000 calories a day.

* * *

Lose weight Fast!
Certified 100% Pure South African Hoodia
Feel Full Faster and Stay Full Longer
Safe Weight Loss with No Side Effects
Suppress Your Appetite

* * *

How long does Hoodia Gordonii take to work?

The consensus is that hoodia can take up to 1 to 2 weeks to kick in, however, many
people notice the appetite suppressing effects within 112 hour of taking a dose of hoodia.

* * *

How fast will I lose weight with the Hoodia Diet Pill?

Studies done in Leicester, England have shown that people using the Hoodia gordonii
diet pill reduce their calorie intake by up to 1000 calories a day and when you put that
into pounds lost it may equate up to 4-6 pounds a week.

6



28. To induce consumers to purchase the VPXL male enhancement pills, Defendants Inet

Ventures and Atkinson have made the following statements on their Web sites:

expressherbals
nol penis enlargement supplement worldwide!

* * *

A breakthrough in herbal Science has created a pill that has been designed
specifically for penis enlargement. The tests that took place over a 6 month period
showed that out of the 5,000 Males from around the world who participated, the average



Extracts:
Mucuna pruriens 75 mg
Asteracantha longifolia 75 mg
Pueraria tuberosa 75 mg
Withania somnifera 50 mg
Tribulus terrestris 50 mg
Albizzia lebbeck 50 mg

Powders:
Argyerin speciosa seed 100 mg
Valeriana wallichii 25 mg

What kind of increase can I expect?
You can expect an increase ranging from 1 to 4 inches after a 4 month supply, but we do
recommend the 6 month package for better results and higher savings.

***

What type of herbs are used in VPXL Pills?

VPXL Pills are a unique blend of all natural and FDA approved ingredients.

29. To induce consumers to purchase the ManSter, Xtrasize+, Megadik, Man XL, LNH

Solutions, MaxGain+ and PowerEnlarge male enhancement pills, Defendants Inet

Ventures and Atkinson have made statements on their Web sites substantially identical to

those in Paragraph 28 above.

30. Despite statements that the male enhancement pills are a 100% safe and herbal formula,

VPXL male enhancement pills sold by Defendants Inet Ventures and Atkinson have

contained a pharmaceutical drug used to treat male erectile dysfunction that has known

side effects and that may not be safe for certain individuals.

Pharmaceutical Medication Sales

31. Since at least December 2007, Defendants Inet Ventures and Atkinson have engaged in a

joint venture with the Smith Enterprise to market and sell pharmaceutical medication on
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at least hundreds of Internet Web sites. Defendants' Web sites are often titled "Target

Pharmacy" or "Canadian Healthcare."

32. To induce consumers



Where are your Physicians Licensed?

A: Our physicians are U.S. licensed. We use only board certified physicians and U.S.
licensed pharmacies.

What happens when I submit my order?

A: Your order is dispatched through our order system to a licensed physician who will
review the information you have submitted and approve or decline your request.

When your order is approved, the physician will then write your prescription and our
ordering system will  Td
ue



33. To induce consumers to purchase medication from "Target Pharmacy," Defendants' Web

sites contain a seal that reads "1906-2006 FDA Centennial." Under the seal is lanauaze...... ......

that reads "Approved by American Drug Administration."

34. To induce consumers to purchase medication from "Canadian Healthcare," Defendants

make statements on their Web sites substantially identical to those in Paragraphs 32 3n1o79 0 0 10.7 410.3"Targi548c 10.9327 0 0 10.7 159.0079 74purTm
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40. Defendants "initiate" a commercial email message when they have either originated or

transmitted a message themselves or have procured the origination or transmission of a

message through payments or other consideration, or inducements.

41. Defendants are "senders" with respect to a commercial email message when they have

initiated a message and it is Defendants' Web sites that are being advertised or promoted

by such message.

42. Defendants have initiated commercial email messages for the "herbal" products and

pharmaceutical medication discussed above. Defendants also have initiated commercial

email messages for replica watches that have been marketed on at least hundreds of Web

sites titled "King Replica."

43. Defendants have initiated commercial email messages containing materially false or

misleading header information. In many instances, the email contains an originating

email address that was not assigned by the email service provider or was used without the

authorization of the subscriber who obtained the email address from the email service

operator. In other instances, the email message fails to identify accurately the computer

used to initiate the message because the email message was relayed or retransmitted

through another computer for PUllloses of disguising its origin.

44. Defendants' commercial email messages fail to include any notification to recipients of

their ability to decline receiving future email messages from Defendants, and they fail to

include a reply email address or other mechanism that recipients can use to decline

receiving future email messages from Defendants.

45. Defendants have initiated commercial email messages that failed to include a valid

physical postal address of the sender.
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VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE FTC ACT

46. Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.c. § 45(a), prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or

practices in or affecting commerce. Section 12(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.c. § 52(a),

prohibits the dissemination of any false advertisement in or affecting commerce for the

purpose of inducing, or which is likely to induce, the purchase of food, drugs, devices,

services or cosmetics. For the purpose of Section 12 of the FTC Act, the Hoodia

product and the male enhancement pills sold by Defendants Atkinson and Inet Ventures

are "foods" or "drugs" as defined in 15 U.S.C. §§ 55(b), (c). The offering for sale and

sale of medical consultations and prescription medications by Defendants is a "service"

for purposes of Section 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 52.

47. As set forth below, Defendants have engaged in unlawful practices in violation of

Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act in connection with the marketing and/or sale of the

Hoodia product, the male enhancement pills and pharmaceutical medication.

COUNT I

Unlawful Claims Regarding Hoodia Products

48. Through the means described in Paragraphs 25-27 and 39-42 above, Defendants Inet

Ventures and Atkinson have represented, expressly or by implication, that:

a. their Hoodia product causes rapid and substantial weight loss, including as much

as four to six pounds per week; and

b. clinical research proves that the ingredient in the Hoodia product reduces a users'

caloric intake by as much as 2000 calories per day.
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49. The representations set forth in Paragraph 48 are false or were not substantiated at the

time they were made. Therefore, the making of the representations set forth in Paragraph

48 constitutes a deceptive practice, and the making of false advertisements, in violation

of Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.c. §§ 45(a) and 52.

cOUNTH

Unlawful Claims Regarding Male Enhancement Pills





VIOLATIONS OF ]'HE CAN-SPAM ACT

58. CAN-SPAM became effective on January 1,2004, and has since remained in full force

and effect.

59. Section 5(a)(1) of CAN-SPAM, 15 U.S.C. § 7704(a)(1), states:

It is unlawful for any person to initiate the transmission, to a
protected computer, of a commercial electronic mail message ...
that contains, or is accompanied by, header information that is
materially false or materially misleading.

60. Section 5(a)(6) of CAN-SPAM, 15 U.S.c. § 7704(a)(6), states:

For purposes of [section 5(a)(1)], the term "materially", when used
with respect to false or misleading header information, includes the
alteration or concealment of header information in a manner that
would impair the ability of an Internet access service processing
the message on behalf of a recipient, a person alleging a violation
of this section, or a law enforcement agency to identify, locate, or
respond to a person who initiated the electronic mail message or to
investigate the alleged violation, or the ability of a recipient of the
message to respond to a person who initiated the electronic
message.

61. Section 5(a)(3) of CAN-SPAM, 15 U.S.c. § 7704(a)(3) states:

It is



62. Section 5(a)(5)(A) of CAN-SPAM, 15 U.S.C. § 7704(a)(5)(A) states:

It is unlawful for any person to initiate the transmission of any
commercial electronic mail message to a protected computer
unless the message provides:

(i) clear and conspicuous identification that the message is an advertisement
or solicitation;

(ii) clear and conspicuous notice of the opportunity under [section 5(a)(3)] to
decline to receive further commercial electronic mail messages from the
sender; and

(iii) a valid physical postal address of the sender.

63. Section 7(a) of CAN-SPAM, 15 0 Tdus(of)T687 -2.55617330 10.8 263.0214 2a,5u56 Td
(6.0466 Tc 4.09j
0.05 Tc 11.100.;)T.03.886 0 Td,ectronic



a. a clear and conspicuous notice of the recipient's opportunity to decline to receive

further commercial electronic mail messages from Defendants at the recipient's

electronic mail address; and/or

b. a functioning return electronic mail address or other Internet-based mechanism,

clearly and conspicuously displayed, that a recipient could use to submit a reply

electronic mail message or other form of Internet-based communication

requesting not to receive future commercial electronic mail messages from

Defendants at the electronic mail address where the message was received, and

that remains capable of receiving such messages or communications for no less

than 30 days after the transmission of the original message.

67. Defendants' acts or practices, as described in Paragraph 66 above, violate 15 U.S.c. §

7704(a)(5)(A)(ii) and/or § 7704(a)(3).

COUNT VII

68. In numerous instances, Defendants have initiated the transmission, to protected

computers, of commercial email messages that advertise or promote Defendants' Internet

Web sites, products, or services and do not include the senders' valid physical postal

address.

69. Defendants' acts or practices, as described in Paragraph 68 above, violate 15 U.S.c.

§ 7704(a)(5)(A)(iii).

CONSUMER INJURY

70. Consumers throughout the United States and beyond have suffered, and continue to

suffer, substantial monetary loss and other injury as a result of Defendants'

unlawful acts or practices. In addition, Defendants have been unjustly enriched as a
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result of their unlawful practices. Absent injunctive and other equitable relief by this

Court, Defendants are likely to continue to injure consumers, reap unjust enrichment, and

harm the public interest.

THIS COURT'S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF

71. Sections l3(b) and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.c. §§ 53(b) and 57b, empowers this

Court to grant injunctive and other ancillary equitable relief to prevent and remedy

Defendants' violations of the FTC Act, and in the exercise of its equitable jurisdiction, to

award redress to remedy the injury to individuals and businesses, to order the

disgorgement of monies resulting from Defendants' unlawful acts or practices, and to

order other ancillary equitable relief. A violation of CAN-SPAM may be remedied in the

same manner as a violation of the FTC Act. 15 U.S.C. § 7706.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff FTC, pursuant to Sections l3(b) and 19 of the FTC Act, 15

U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b, Section 7(a) of CAN-SPAM, 15 U.S.c.relievTd
(reliev97_0 
(ies,)Tj
0 T Tc 1.317 Tc 11 0 0,)Tj
0 Tc 3.957



including, but not limited to,


